Mr S Hearse
Chief Executive

Torridge District Council
Riverbank House
Bideford
Devon
EX39 2QG
DX 53606 BIDEFORD
Tel : Bideford (01237) 428700
Date:

22 March 2021

MEETING OF AUDIT & GOVERNANCE
COMMITTEE
On:

Tuesday 30 March 2021

At:

2.00 pm

Venue:

Virtual Meeting via Zoom with Public Access via YouTube
https://tinyurl.com/TorridgeYouTube - https://tinyurl.com/TorridgeYouTube

Temporary measures during the Coronavirus Pandemic:
Members of the public attending meetings or taking part in the public forum are advised that
all Audit & Governance meetings taking place during the Covid-19 Pandemic will be filmed for live or
subsequent broadcast via the YouTube channel - https://tinyurl.com/TorridgeYouTube

NOTICE OF MEETING

To:

Councillor P Hackett (Chair)
Councillor C Hodson (Vice-Chair)
Councillors: R Craigie, K Hepple, D Jones and G Rossi
Non elected Members:
Members are requested to turn off their mobile phones for the duration of the meeting

AGENDA
PART I - (OPEN SESSION)
1.

Apologies For Absence
To receive apologies for absence for the meeting.

2.

Minutes (Pages 3 - 12)
Confirmation of Minutes of the Meeting held on 26th January 2021

3.

Action List (Page 13)

4.

Declaration of Interests
Members with interests should refer to the agenda item and describe the nature of
their interest when the item is considered.

5.

Agreement of Agenda Items Part I and II

6.

Urgent Matters Brought Forward with the Permission of the Chair

7.

Torridge Progress Report (Pages 14 - 28)
To receive a report from Grant Thornton LLP, External Auditors

8.

Informing the Audit Risk Assessment 2020/21 (Pages 29 - 56)
To receive a report from Grant Thornton LLP, External Auditors

9.

Torridge District Audit Plan (Pages 57 - 81)
To receive a report from Grant Thornton LLP, External Auditors

10. Audit Reports Issued (Pages 82 - 86)
To receive the report from Rob Hutchins – Devon Audit Partnership
11. Forward Plan (Page 87)
12. Exclusion of the Public
The Chair to move:
That the public be excluded from the remainder of the meeting because of the likely
disclosure of exempt information by virtue of paragraph 3 of Part I and paragraph 10
of Part 2 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972.
13. PART II (CLOSED SESSION)
14. COVID-19 Lessons (Pages 88 - 94)
To receive a presentation from the Finance Manager (S151 Officer)
15. Cyber Security Update
To receive a presentation from the Strategy, Performance & ICT Manager
Meeting Organiser: Democratic Services

Agenda Item 2
1

TORRIDGE DISTRICT COUNCIL
AUDIT & GOVERNANCE MEETING
Virtual Meeting via Zoom with Public Access via YouTube
https://tinyurl.com/TorridgeYouTube - https://tinyurl.com/TorridgeYouTube
Tuesday, 26 January 2021 - 2.00 pm
PRESENT

Councillor P Hackett (Chair)
Councillor C Hodson (Vice-Chair)
Councillors R Craigie and K Hepple

ALSO PRESENT

S Hearse
S Dorey

- Chief Executive
- Head of Legal & Governance (Monitoring
Officer)
- Finance Manager (Section 151 Officer)
- Devon Audit Partnership Manager
- Service Improvement Officer
- Senior Electoral & Democratic Services
Officer
- Democratic Services Officer

D Heyes
R Hutchins
C Dobbs
T Vanstone
K Brown
Councillors N Laws
42.

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Jones and the Chief
Executive advised he would be late joining the meeting.

43.

MINUTES
The minutes of the meeting held on the 22nd September 2020 were presented.
It was proposed by Councillor Hackett, seconded by Councillor Craigie and –
Resolved:
That the minutes be confirmed as a correct record.
A recorded vote was taken
Councillor

For

Cllr Craigie

X

Cllr Hackett – Chair

X

Cllr Hepple

X

Page 3

Against

Abstain

2

Cllr Hodson – Vice
Chair

X

Cllr Jones
Cllr Rossi
(Vote - Unanimous)
Following a query from Councillor Craigie as to whom, from TDC, attends the
pension scheme AGM the Finance Manager & Section 151 Officer confirmed that
he had attended the last pre COVID physical meeting. He advised he will check
when the next virtual meeting is scheduled for and let Councillor Craigie know as
she would like to attend.
44.

ACTION LIST
Minute Number 121
Councillor Hodson re-iterated the importance of a sharing information protocol
across county authorities and that a formal procedure needs to be constructed. The
Head of Legal and Governance (Monitoring Officer) advised she is the lead for
safeguarding and attends external safeguarding meetings with other Devon
Authorities. Regarding an individual’s welfare there are no restraints concerning
information sharing. The Public Health & Housing Manager and the Housing
Options Team Leader attend regular multi agency meetings for that purpose
however the Head of Legal & Governance (Monitoring Officer) advised she would
ascertain whether there is a formal protocol in place county wide as well as TDC’s
own internal safeguarding policy.

45.

DECLARATION OF INTERESTS
There were no declarations of interest.

46.

AGREEMENT OF AGENDA ITEMS PART I AND II
It was proposed by Councillor Hackett and seconded by Councillor Hodson and –
Resolved:
That the Agenda as circulated be agreed.
A recorded vote was taken.
Councillor
Cllr Craigie

Against

For
X

Page 4

Abstain

3

Cllr Hackett – Chair

X

Cllr Hepple

X

Cllr Hodson – Vice
Chair

X

Cllr Jones
Cllr Rossi
(Vote – Unanimous)
47.

URGENT MATTERS BROUGHT FORWARD WITH THE PERMISSION OF
THE CHAIR
There were no urgent matters brought forward.

48.

CODE OF GOVERNANCE
The Service Improvement Officer presented the report for consideration as it is
necessary for the Council to carry out an annual review of its Corporate
Governance arrangements.
The key functions have been revised due to the Council’s re-structure last year.
Following a query from Councillor Craigie regarding the lack of detail on
environment benefit and sustainability the Service Improvement Officer advised this
document is more generic across all Councils however further information can be
added via the evidence database.
Councillor Hodson suggested the role of Lead Members be added to which the
Service Improvement Officer agreed and advised this would be actioned.
It was proposed by Councillor Hackett and seconded by Councillor Hodson and –
Resolved:
That the revised Code of Corporate Governance be approved with the following
amendments:
 More detail on environment benefits and sustainability
 Add role of Lead Members.
A recorded vote was taken.
Councillor
Cllr Craigie

Against

For
X

Page 5

Abstain

4

Cllr Hackett – Chair

X

Cllr Hepple

X

Cllr Hodson – Vice
Chair

X

Cllr Jones
Cllr Rossi
(Vote – Unanimous)
49.

AGS - REVIEW OF EVIDENCE
The Service Improvement Officer presented the report, the purpose of which was to
satisfy the Committee that the AGS Supporting Evidence reflects the governance
framework.
Following a query from Councillor Craigie asking if the Councillor Climate Change
Working Group could be consulted more on big capital decisions, the Service
Improvement Officer advised this would fall under C2.2 and he would add more
detail. It was advised that the Public Health & Housing Manager has put together a
list so that all new Business Plans meet a Climate Change criteria.
Both the Head of Legal & Governance (Monitoring Officer) and the Finance
Manager & Section 151 Officer confirmed to Councillor Craigie the importance of
the Councillor Climate Change Working Group and that is why it has now been
formally recognised in the new Constitution; however, it is not a decision-making
group and only makes recommendations to the Community & Resource
Committee. It would be difficult to put everything through the Councillor Climate
Change Working Group however new Business Plans will start to come to the
Working Group soon. Once the budget has been agreed for the new Environmental
Centre this will also be presented.
Councillor Hodson pointed out that the new 2020 Constitution that was adopted at
Full Council needs to be updated on the Council’s website.
Following a query from the Chair as to the retention of the virtual meetings on
YouTube the Senior Electoral & Democratic Services Officer confirmed they stay
available as long as the Authority wants them to be.
The report was noted.
The Chief Executive joined the meeting at 2:15pm

Page 6

5

50.

MANAGING THE RISK OF FRAUD AND CORRUPTION - SELF
ASSESSMENT
Prior to the start of the presentation, the Devon Audit Partnership Manager
introduced his colleague Paul Middlemass, a new Audit Manager who will become
the lead Manager for the Council’s Audit & Governance Committee’s once he is
fully trained.
The Devon Audit Partnership Manager presented the report, the purpose of which
was to advise the Committee of the results of a self-assessment against the CIPFA
code of practice on Managing Risk of Fraud and corruption.
Following a query from Councillor Craigie regarding fraudulent claims made for
COVID grants the Devon Audit Partnership Manager advised there has been an
increase in risk however checks have been carried out to reduce the risk and later
in the agenda there is a report which gives assurance of arrangements in place by
the Council. The Finance Manager & Section 151 Officer added that grant
payments did have to be paid quickly which brings an element of fraud, however
proactive work to reduce risk had been done by way of contacting businesses that
would be eligible. The evaluation of the Discretionary Grant process was conducted
by North Devon Plus and due to the rigorous application procedure resulted in no
concern regarding fraud. The Finance Team have been working hard to keep up
with applications and making checks to minimise the risk of fraud. All grants that
have been paid have been put through the National Fraud Initiative Portal which
checks for discrepancies. TDC have paid out 2800 grants in total with 60 of these
requiring more detailed checks for reassurance they have been paid correctly.
Councillor Hodson referred to page 41, point 7, expectation 4 in the table and
asked that as she is Lead Member for Finance and Audit and Vice-Chair of the
Audit Committee could she also be briefed on fraud risks. The Devon Audit
Partnership Manager advised this could be changed to include the Vice-Chair as
well.
Following a query from Councillor Hodson regarding the ability to validate holiday
lets and second homes for eligibility of grants the Finance Manager & Section 151
Officer confirmed that if properties were registered for Business Rates they would
qualify however if properties could not be seen to market their business then
owners were asked to provide evidence.
The Chief Executive advised the Committee that this is recognised as a national
problem and the Chair of the Devon Districts Forum had written directly to the
Secretary of State highlighting these issues. The Chief Executive circulated a copy
of said letter and response to the Committee while the meeting was in progress.
Following a query from Councillor Hepple the Devon Audit Partnership Manager
advised there is no time limit on investigating payments of grants however it would
be dependent on resources available. The same applies to a response plan
however as the level of fraud and corruption within TDC has been traditionally low
there is potential to resource a dedicated officer or expertise externally.

Page 7

6

The Head of Legal & Governance (Monitoring Officer) advised the group that
through auditing the grant payments it had been identified that only 1 had been
paid incorrectly but had since been recouped.
The Chief Executive added that there had been huge pressure from Central
Government to get grants paid quickly. Some other Authorities, who were
underperforming, had received calls from junior ministers questioning why grants
had not yet been paid, TDC did not receive a call therefore to only get one wrong is
a massive achievement and something to be proud of. It is hard to provide extra
resources without an impact on another area so there needs to be a balance. As
part of the new re-structure Operational Managers have been looking at the
structure of their service areas and the resources required. The budget was agreed
at the end of February so any changes will be implemented soon.
The Chair gave credit to everyone involved in getting grants paid so quickly,
accurately and stated a fantastic job has been done.
Following queries from Councillor Craigie the Finance Officer & Section 151 Officer
advised the following:
 TDC will receive a New Burdens Grant which covers the administration of
the grants.
 North Devon Plus have an expertise in assessing businesses and analysing
information on applications submitted for funding. TDC would have struggle
to pay out all the grants if North Devon Plus had not assisted.
 North Devon Plus are audited by TDC.
 There is no formal right of appeal if a grant is not awarded.
The report was noted.

51.

AUDIT REPORTS ISSUED TO DATE
The Devon Audit Partnership Manager presented the report, the purpose of which
was to provide a summary of the audit reports issued to date to enable Members to
discuss any matters they wish to raise.
Specific reference was made to page 63 of the report titled Post Payment
Assurance as this was a concern previously raised in the meeting.
Councillor Hodson raised concern to the Council’s restricted tender process and
commented that perhaps this needs to be re-visited as other contractors are being
excluded. The Devon Audit Partnership Manager advised this was their findings
however agreed it could be looked at again.
The report was noted.

52.

PROGRESS WITH AGREED ACTIONS
The Finance Manager & Section 151 Officer delivered the report, the purpose of
which was to provide an update on progress with implementing agreed actions.

Page 8

7

Following a query from the Chair regarding the time taking to produce an up-to-date
Asset Management Plan it was advised that the recruitment process is currently
ongoing for a new staff member within the Property & Procurement Team. If a
successful candidate is appointed, then this piece of work would be made a priority.
The report was noted.
53.

AUDIT PLAN
A verbal update on the Audit Plan was given by the Finance Manager & Section
151 Officer.
Generally, the focus on an audit is when there is a change. For this financial year
changes have been made to include Car Parks - due to a couple of members of
staff leaving, Hardship Grants, Track and Trace Isolation Payments and ICT –
Home Working due to COVID -19.
As new audits have been added other audits such as creditor payment and Main
Accounting audits have been postponed or scaled back. The decision regarding
which audit to scale back on being determined by previous good audit report and
where there had been no turnover in experienced staff.
The plan was noted.

54.

RIPA UPDATE
The Head of Legal & Governance (Monitoring Officer) gave a verbal update as she
is the lead officer for RIPA.
The Committee were advised that TDC had been audited by IPCO for the
procedures in place for RIPA. The result was good with IPCO being happy that
reports were made to the Audit & Governance Committee and that there was no
unauthorised RIPA activity.
The only point that was raised was the use of Social Media regarding
investigations. This is not permitted, and the Head of Legal & Governance
(Monitoring Officer) has sent an email to all staff to remind.
The report was noted.

55.

GENERAL UPDATE
The Engagement Lead for Grant Thornton LLP, External Auditors delivered the
update report.
Following a query from the Chair regarding the additional fee the Engagement Lead
for Grant Thornton advised it has not been levied by Grant Thornton but is a result
of the NEOs code changing. Information is currently being collated which will be

Page 9

8

discussed further with TDC before being referred to the PSAA. At this stage it
would be hard to guess how much the additional fee will be.
56.

ANNUAL AUDIT LETTER
The Engagement Lead for Grant Thornton LLP, External Auditors presented the
report to the Committee advising the Audit Letter is a summation of work
undertaken for 2019/20.
Particular attention was made to the Audit Fee Variations and the additional fee for
COVID-19.
Following a query from the Finance Manager & Section 151 Officer the
Engagement Lead for Grant Thornton could not confirm a deadline date for Local
Government accounts but an assumption had been made by Grant Thornton that it
may be the 30th of September however they do have a backlog of work. To try and
tackle the backlog of work interim visits will be scaled back with only ASO standard
requirements being conducted.
It was confirmed to the Chair that a certain amount of work must be conducted
regarding an interim audit for the Audit Plan, this includes substantive testing for
example looking at creditor payments, journals, and key financial systems. Capacity
is being looked at to ascertain how much of this testing can be done at the interim
stage or if it will be done at the final accounts stage.
Following further concern from the Chair regarding the Housing Benefit Audit
deadline being pushed backed again the Engagement Lead for Grant Thornton
advised they envisage to get the audit completed by the new deadline and that the
Department for Work & Pensions have recognised the impact COVID-19 has had
on all Auditors not just Grant Thornton.
The Finance Manager & Section 151 Officer could not foresee an Interim Audit
taking place with only the statutory requirements being carried out however he is
meeting with officers at Grant Thornton to discuss this matter.
The Chair raised concerned to the problems that could occur if deadlines are not
met and asked if staff retention is an issue, to which the Engagement Lead for
Grant Thornton advised there several issues with staff being one along with
COVID-19.
The report was noted.

57.

FORWARD PLAN
The Forward Plan noted.

58.

EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC
It was proposed by Councillor Hackett, seconded by Councillor Hodson and –

Page 10

9

Resolved:
That under Section 100(a)(4) of the Local Government Act (as amended) the public
be excluded from the meeting for the following items of business because of the
likely disclosure of exempt information by virtue of Paragraph 3 of Part 1 and
Paragraph 10 of Part 2 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972.
A recorded vote was taken.
Councillor

For

Cllr Craigie

X

Cllr Hackett – Chair

X

Cllr Hepple

X

Cllr Hodson – Vice
Chair

X

Against

Abstain

Cllr Jones
Cllr Rossi

(Vote: For - unanimous)
59.

PART II (CLOSED SESSION)

60.

CORPORATE RISK REGISTER
The Finance Manager and Section 151 Officer delivered a presentation on the
Corporate Risk Register.
It was proposed by Councillor Hackett, seconded by Councillor Hepple and –
Resolved:
That the meeting leaves Part II
A recorded vote was taken.
Councillor

For

Cllr Craigie

X

Cllr Hackett – Chair

X

Cllr Hepple

X

Against

Page 11

Abstain

10

Cllr Hodson – Vice
Chair

X

Cllr Jones
Cllr Rossi

(Vote: For - unanimous)

The meeting commenced at 2.00 pm and closed at 4.21 pm

Chair:

Date:

Page 12

Audit & Governance Committee
Actions from meeting on 26th Jan 2021
Minute Action raised by
Action
Number
121
Councillor Hodson Audit & Governance Committee write to Mark Williams –
Chief Executive of East Devon who represents districts
councils on the board to highlight that the information
sharing protocol should be developed. Subject to it still be
required following review by DAP Manager and Customer
Services Manager to engage with the Devon Safeguarding
Leads Group.

Councillor Craigie

Page 13

26.01.21 – Further discussion regarding this with Staci
advising she will se eif there is a formal protocol across
authorities.
26.01.21 – Would like to know when the next pension
scheme virtual meeting is so that she can attend

Responsible for
Action
Strategic Manager
(Resources)
DAP Manager
Customer Services
Manager

Contacted
February

Completed
Steve to
Follow Up

Staci to
follow

David Heyes

Complete.

22nd March 2021 – The Finance Manager (S151) has
contacted Cllr Craigie to advise this year’s meeting had
already taken place and the next meeting will take place
Jan 2022.

Agenda Item 3

Agenda Item 7

Page 14

Commercial in confidence

Page 15

Commercial in confidence

•

Page 16

•

Commercial in confidence

•
•
•

Page 17

•

•

•

•

•

Commercial in confidence

Page 18

Commercial in confidence

Page 19

Commercial in confidence

•
•

Page 20

•
•

Commercial in confidence

Page 21

Section 20 and 21 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 (the Act),
require auditors to be satisfied that the body “has made proper arrangements
for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources”. The
auditor‟s work on VFM arrangements is undertaken in accordance with the
Code and its supporting statutory guidance. The Comptroller and Auditor
General has determined through the 2020 Code and guidance that the key
output from local audit work in respect of VFM arrangements is the
commentary as reported in the Auditor‟s Annual Report. It is therefore not a
VFM arrangements „conclusion‟ or an „opinion‟ in the same sense as the
opinion on the financial statements themselves. The Act and the Code
require auditors to consider whether the body has put in place „proper
arrangements‟ for securing VFM. The arrangements that fall within the scope of
„proper arrangements‟ are set out in 'AGN 03 Auditors' work on VFM
arrangements', which is issued by the NAO. When reporting on these
arrangements, the Code requires auditors to structure their commentary on
arrangements under three specified reporting criteria:

How the body plans and manages its resources to ensure it can continue to
deliver its services, including how the body:
• ensures that it identifies all the significant financial pressures that are
relevant to its short and medium-term plans and builds these into them;
• plans to bridge its funding gaps and identifies achievable savings;
•

plans finances to support the sustainable delivery of services in accordance
with strategic and statutory priorities;

• ensures that its financial plan is consistent with other plans such as
workforce, capital, investment, and other operational planning which may
include working with other local public bodies as part of a wider system; and

• identifies and manages risks to financial resilience, e.g. unplanned changes
in demand, including challenge of the assumptions underlying its plans.

How the body ensures that it makes informed decisions and properly manages
its risks, including how the body:
• monitors and assesses risk and how the body gains assurance over the
effective operation of internal controls, including arrangements to
prevent and detect fraud;
• approaches and carries out its annual budget setting process;
• ensures effective processes and systems are in place to ensure budgetary
control; to communicate relevant, accurate and timely management
information (including non-financial information where appropriate);
supports its statutory financial reporting requirements; and ensures
corrective action is taken where needed;
• ensures it makes properly informed decisions, supported by appropriate
evidence and allowing for challenge and transparency. This includes
arrangements for effective challenge from those charged with
governance/audit committee; and
• monitors and ensures appropriate standards, such as meeting
legislative/regulatory requirements and standards in terms of officer or
member behaviour (such as gifts and hospitality or declarations/conflicts of
interests).

Commercial in confidence

How the body uses information about its costs and performance to improve
the
way it manages and delivers its services, including:
• how financial and performance information has been used to assess
performance to identify areas for improvement;
• how the body evaluates the services it provides to assess performance and
identify areas for improvement;

More
meaningful
and timely
reporting

Maximising
the value
from
auditor’s
work

Page 22

• how the body ensures it delivers its role within significant partnerships,
engages with stakeholders it has identified, monitors performance against
expectations, and ensures action is taken where necessary to improve; and
• where the body commissions or procures services, how the body ensures
that this is done in accordance with relevant legislation, professional
standards and internal policies, and how the body assesses whether it
is realising the expected benefits.

More
freedom to
reflect local
context

VFM arrangements commentary and recommendations

Commercial in confidence

Section of report Content
Commentary on
arrangements

Page 23

An explanation of the VFM work that has been
undertaken during the year, including the risk
assessment and any further risk-based work. It will
also highlight any significant weaknesses that
have been identified and brought to the body‟s
attention. The commentary will allow auditors to
better reflect local context and draw attention to
emerging or developing issues which may not
represent significant weaknesses, but which may
nevertheless require attention from the body itself.
Recommendations Where an auditor concludes that there is a significant
weakness in a body‟s arrangements, they report this
to the body and support it with a recommendation
for
Progress in
Where
an auditor has reported significant
improvement.
weaknesses in arrangements in the previous year,
implementing
recommendations the auditor should follow up recommendations issued
previously and include their view as to whether the
recommendations have been implemented
satisfactorily.
Use of additional
Where an auditor uses additional powers, such as
powers
making statutory recommendations or issuing a public
interest report, this should be reported in the audi t
or‟ s annual report .
Opinion on the
The auditor‟s annual report also needs to summarise
financial statements the results of the auditor‟s work on the financial
statements.

Type of
recommendation

Definition

Statutory
recommendation

Where auditors make written recommendations to the
body under Section 24 and Schedule 7 of the Local
Audit and Accountability Act 2014. A recommendation
of this type requires the body to discuss and respond
publicly to the report.

Key recommendation Where auditors identify significant weaknesses in a
body‟s arrangements for securing value for money, they
have to make recommendations setting out the actions
that the body should take to address them
Improvement
recommendation

Where auditors do not identify a significant weakness in
the body‟s arrangements, but still wish to make
recommendations about how the body‟s arrangements
can be improved

Commercial in confidence

Page 24

Commercial in confidence

•

Page 25

•
•
•
•
•

Commercial in confidence

Page 26

Commercial in confidence

Page 27

Page 28

Informing the audit risk assessment
for Torridge District Council 2020/21

Andrew Dav ies
Engagement Manager
T +44 (0)117 305 7844
E andrew.davies@uk.gt.com
Oishi Ghosh
Engagement In-charge
T +44 (0)117 305 7640
E oishi.ghosh@uk.gt.com

Agenda Item 8

Page 29

Julie Masci
Engagement Lead
T +44 (0)29 2034 7506
E julie.masci@uk.gt.com

Page 30
The contents of this report relate only to the matters which have come to our attention, which
we believe need to be reported to you as part of our audit process. It is not a comprehensive
record of all the relevant matters, which may be subject to change, and in particular we cannot
be held responsible to you for reporting all of the risks which may affect your business or any
weaknesses in your internal controls. This report has been prepared solely for your benefit and
should not be quoted in whole or in part without our prior written consent. We do not accept any
responsibility for any loss occasioned to any third party acting, or refraining from acting on the
basis of the content of this report, as this report was not prepared for, nor intended for, any
other purpose.

2

© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Torridge District Council 2020/21

Table of Contents
Section

Page

Purpose

4

General Enquiries of Management

6

Fraud

9

Fraud Risk Assessment

Page 31

10

Laws and Regulations

15

Impact of Laws and Regulations

16

Related Parties

18

Accounting Estimates

20

Accounting Estimate's - General Enquiries of Management

21

Appendix A – Accounting Estimates

24

3

© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Torridge District Council 2020/21

Purpose
T he purpose of this report is to contribute towards the effective two-way communication between Torridge District Council's external auditors and
Torridge District Council’s Audit and Governance Committee, as 'those charged with governance'. The report covers some important areas of the
auditor risk assessment where we are required to make inquiries of the Audit and Governance Committee under auditing standards.
Background
Under International Standards on Auditing (UK), (ISA(UK)) auditors have specific responsibilities to communicate with the Audit and Governance
Committee. ISA(UK) emphasise the importance of two-way communication between the auditor and the Audit and Governance Committee and also
specify matters that should be communicated.

Page 32

This two-way communication assists both the auditor and the Audit and Governance Committee in understanding matters relating to the audit and
developing a constructive working relationship. It also enables the auditor to obtain information relevant to the audit from the Audit and Governance
Committee and supports the Audit and Governance Committee in fulfilling its responsibilities in relation to the financial rep orting process.
Communication
As part of our risk assessment procedures we are required to obtain an understanding of management processes and the Council’ s oversight of the
following areas:
• General Enquiries of Management
• Fraud,
• Laws and Regulations,
• Related Parties, and
• Accounting Estimates.

4

© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Torridge District Council 2020/21

Purpose
This report includes a series of questions on each of these areas and the response we have received from Torridge District Council’s management.
The Audit and Governance Committee should consider whether these responses are consistent with its understanding and whether there are any
further comments it wishes to make.

Page 33
5

© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Torridge District Council 2020/21

General Enquiries of Management
Question

Management response
The main issue that stands out above all others is the complexity of the Covid-19 payments w e
have received and the classification thereof and the presentation (exceptional item might be a
consideration).

2. Have you considered the appropriateness of the
accounting policies adopted by Torridge District
Council? Have there been any events or transactions
that may cause you to change or adopt new
accounting policies?

Not yet but the Grants and contributions policy might require additional clarification around the Covid-19
grants.

Page 34

1. What do you regard as the key events or issues
that w ill have a significant impact on the financial
statements for 2020/21?

IAS 19 amendments to the code need to be taken into account and applied and appropriately
disclosed. Financial instruments changes – w e do not foresee that this w ill affect us but this needs
to be review ed.
IFRS 16 leases – notice of the further delay in implementation, initial assessment is that the impact on
Torridge w ill not be significant as it does not have many leased in assets (primarily

3. Is there any use of financial instruments,
including derivatives?

No
– The Council
only has
short term
treasury deposits
ever it has a loan
photocopiers
). Consider
policies
and disclosures
on lightfor
of cash
new flow
IASBpurposes,
Definition how
of materiality
of
IAS1.
£100k to the Atlantic Racquet Centre in 2020/21.

4. Are you aw are of any significant transaction
outside the normal course of business?

The Covid-19 Discretionary grants that fall outside of the Collection Fund. Passported grants.

6

© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Torridge District Council 2020/21

General Enquiries of Management
Question

Management response
General market uncertainty around Covid-19.

7. Are you aw are of the existence of loss
contingencies and/or un-asserted claims that may
affect the financial statements?

None.

8. Other than in house solicitors, can you provide
details of those solicitors utilised by Torridge District
Council during the year. Please indicate w here they
are w orking on open litigation or contingencies from
prior years?

Monitoring Officer has confirmed none.

Page 35

5. Are you aw are of any changes in circumstances
that w ould lead to impairment of non-current
assets?
6. Are you aw are of any guarantee contracts?

Impact of reduced income on assets using income as a determining valuation factor.
None.

There w ere no contingencies from prior years.

General Enquiries of Management
Question

Management response
None.

10. Can you provide details of other advisors
consulted during the year and the issue on w hich
they w ere consulted?

Statements of Accounts –

Page 36

9. Have any of the Council’s service providers
reported any items of fraud, non-compliance w ith
law s and regulations or uncorrected misstatements
w hich w ould affect the financial statements?

We have a subscription w ith Ichabod Industries w ho have provided us w ith briefing notes and
annual update. No queries raised w ith them through the year.
PSTax subscription – We raise questions concerning tax (mostly VAT) through out the year.

Fraud
Issue
M atters in relation to fraud
ISA (UK) 240 covers auditors responsibilities relating to fraud in an audit of financial statements.
The primary responsibility to prevent and detect fraud rests with both the Audit and Governance Committee and management.
Management, with the oversight of the Audit and Governance Committee, needs to ensure a strong emphasis on fraud prevention a nd
deterrence and encourage a culture of honest and ethical behaviour. As part of its oversight, the Audit and Governance Commit tee should
consider the potential for override of controls and inappropriate influence over the financial reporting process.

Page 37

As Torridge District Council’s external auditor, we are responsible for obtaining reasonable assurance that the financial sta tements are free
from material misstatement due to fraud or error. We are required to maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit, c onsidering the
potential for management override of controls.
As part of our audit risk assessment procedures we are required to consider risks of fraud. This includes considering the arrangements
management has put in place with regard to fraud risks including:
• assessment that the financial statements could be materially misstated due to fraud,
• process for identifying and responding to risks of fraud, including any identified specific risks,
• communication with the Audit and Governance Committee regarding its processes for identifying and responding to risks of fraud, and
• communication to employees regarding business practices and ethical behaviour.
We need to understand how the Audit and Governance Committee oversees the above processes. We are also required to make inqui ries
of both management and the Audit and Governance Committee as to their knowledge of any actual, suspected or alleged fraud. Th ese
areas have been set out in the fraud risk assessment questions below together with responses from Torridge District Council’s
management.
9

© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Torridge District Council 2020/21

Fraud risk assessment
Question

Management response

1. Have Torridge District Council assessed the risk of The Council’s internal Audit focusses on internal controls w hich prevent fraud. For example the
material misstatement in the financial statements due audits
to fraud?
undertaken w ill look for separation of duties and other control measures.
We have in place an Anti-fraud, Corruption and Bribery Policy and Strategy – Sections
6.3-6.8 http://intranet.torridge.gov.uk/ CHttp Ha ndler.ashx?id =19 808 &p=0

Page 38

How has the process of identifying and responding
to the risk of fraud been undertaken and w hat are
the results of this process?
How do the Torridge District Council’s risk
management
processes link to financial reporting?
2. What have you determined to be the classes of
accounts, transactions and disclosures most at risk
to fraud?

Our internal controls are robust and w e have just had a Main Accounting Systems audit w hich
identified
no matters of concern.
Given the number of grants paid out this year – passported and other support grants, the
possibility of fraudulent grant applications had led to a Post Payment Assurance Plan
implementing Grant Fraud Checks.

Fraud risk assessment
10

© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Torridge District Council 2020/21

Page 39

Fraud risk assessment
Question

Management response

Page 40

3. Are you aw are of any instances of actual, suspected None w ithin Torridge, there have been some attempts to claim Business Support Grants fraudulently.
or alleged fraud, errors or other irregularities either w
ithin Torridge District Council as a w hole or w ithin
specific departments since 1 April 2020?
As a management team, how do you communicate
risk issues (including fraud) to those charged w ith
governance?
4. Have you identified any specific fraud risks?
The fraud risks identified
Do you have any concerns there are areas that are
at risk of fraud?
Are there particular locations w ithin Torridge District
Council w here fraud is more likely to occur?
5. What processes do Torridge District Council have
in
place to identify and respond to risks of fraud?

Where cash is handled there is increase risk of fraud, the only place w here cash is taken by the Council is
at
Northam
Burrow
The Council
hass.a fraud policy section on our staff intranet

http://intranet.torridge.gov.uk/3171.

Fraud risk assessment
Question

Management response

6. How do you assess the overall control environment for
Torridge
District Council, including:

Internal audit conducts a Main accounting Systems Audit – no concerns.

•
•

the existence of internal controls, including segregation
of duties; and
the process for review ing the effectiveness the system of
internal control?

This is an ongoing consideration.

No internal control issues w ithin Finance have been raised during the year.
http://intranet.torridge.gov.uk/3 171 Fraud Policy, Whistle-blow ing Policy, CIPFA –
Managing the Risk of fraud, Financial Procedure rules.

What other controls are in place to help prevent, deter or
detect
fraud?

Any override of controls is governed by a process – e.g. contract w aiver

Page 41

If internal controls are not in place or not effective w here are
the
risk areas and w hat mitigating actions have been taken?

Are there any areas w here there is a potential for override
of controls or inappropriate influence over the financial
reporting process (for example because of undue pressure
to achieve
financial targets)?
7. Are there any areas w here there is potential for misreporting?

Estimated accruals and prepayments, impairment of debt w orkings – there is little
scope in our organisation for pressures of this nature and these adjustments are
review ed very carefully for appropriateness. There is no meaningful incentive to
misreport financial performance.

Fraud risk assessment
Question

Management response

8. How
do Torridge
District
Council
communicate
and
encourage
ethical
behaviours and business processes of it’s
staff and contractors?

See code of conduct for employees - http://intranet.torridge.gov.uk/C HttpHandler.ashx?id=9510&p=0
See tender template for contractors - Tender template TDC January 2021 v3.docx

Page 42

How do you encourage staff to report their
concerns about fraud?
What concerns are staff expected to report
about
fraud
9. From a fraud and corruption perspective, w hat
?
are considered to be high-risk posts?
Have any significant issues been
reported?
How are the risks relating to these posts
identified, assessed and managed?
10. Are you aw are of any related party
relationships
or transactions that could give rise to instances
of fraud?
How do you mitigate the risks associated w ith
fraud related to related party relationships and
transactions?

There is the Whistleblow ing policy and the Fraud Policy in place as w ell as a Code of Conduct for
Employees.

Officers w ith the ability to approve expenditure.

Any identified gap in the controls are risk assessed and controls put in place to address the risk
appropriately.
None.

The Members and Officers OMT and above complete a Register of Interests and the Members have
a code of Conduct w hich w ill cover the ethics of related party relationship and transactions. At
Committee Meetings Members w ith an interest in a matter being decided recuse themselves
formally. At year end a a w orking paper identifies related party transactions and is disclosed in a
note.

Fraud risk assessment
Management response

11. What arrangements are in place to report
fraud issues and risks to the Audit and
Governance Committee?
How does the Audit and Governance Committee
exercise oversight over management's processes
for identifying and responding to risks of fraud
and breaches of internal control?
What has been the outcome of these
arrangements
so far this year?

Any instances of fraud (or possible fraud / error) are reported to the Leader and the appropriate Lead
Member / Committee Chair; and then to A & G (as Part II agenda items).

Page 43

Question

12. Are you aw are of any w histle blow ing
potential or complaints by potential w histle blow
ers? If so,

Each year the Audit Manager (DAP) undertakes and reports on a fraud self assessment against
CIPFA’s
code of practice.
Any instances of fraud (or possible fraud / error) are reported to the Leader and the appropriate Lead
Member / Committee Chair; and then to A & G (as Part II agenda items).
Fraud arrangements at Torridge are seen to be effective - there have been no reported frauds
(excluding benefits) during 2019-20.
None.

w hat has been your response?
13. Have any reports been made under the Bribery None.
Act?

Law and regulations
Issue
M atters in relation to laws and regulations
ISA (UK) 250 requires us to consider the impact of laws and regulations in an audit of the financial statements.

Page 44

Management, with the oversight of the Audit and Governance Committee, is responsible for ensuring that Torridge District Council's
operations are conducted in accordance with laws and regulations including those that determine amounts in the financial statements.
As auditor, we are responsible for obtaining reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from material misstatement due to fraud or
error, taking into account the appropriate legal and regulatory framework. As part of our risk assessment procedures we are required to make
inquiries of management and the Audit and Governance Committee as to whether the entity is in compliance with laws and regulations. Where we
become aware of information of non-compliance or suspected non-compliance we need to gain an understanding of the non-compliance and the
possible effect on the financial statements.
Risk assessment questions have been set out below together with responses from management.

Impact of laws and regulations
Question

Management response

1. How does management gain assurance that all relevant
law s and regulations have been complied w ith?

A mix of internal audit reports, Annual Audit opinion and Senior Manager Governance
statements. Any non compliance is reported to senior management and A&G Committee
along w ith any necessary mitigating actions.
Internal Audit function – key systems are audited annually and the annual internal audit
plan
is risk assessed to provide assurance across all services that agreed policies and
procedures are in place and are being complied w ith. Also the Whistle-blow ing
policy, complaints process and questions by the general public to Members at
openaw
meetings.
Not
are.

What arrangements does Torridge District Council have
in place to prevent and detect non-compliance w ith law
s and regulations?

Page 45

Are you aw are of any changes to the Council’s regulatory
environment that may have a significant impact on the
Council’s
2.
How isstatements?
the Audit and Governance Committee provided w
financial
ith assurance that all relevant law s and regulations have
been complied w ith?
3. Have there been any instances of non-compliance or
suspected non-compliance w ith law s and regulation
since 1
April 2020 w ith an on-going impact on the 2020/21
4.
Is therestatements?
any actual or potential litigation or claims that w
financial
ould affect the financial statements?

Senior Manager Assurance Statements and an annual review of governance
arrangements. All audit reports are circulated to Members of the A&G Committee and
time is allocated at Committee to discuss any issues identified.
None.

None.

Impact of laws and regulations
Question

Management response
As a small district council, any potential legal liability arising from claims against the Council w
ould be picked up at the regular budget monitoring meetings betw een legal and finance. Further
more if a legal
case is considered a high risk to the Council it w ould be added to the Council’s risk register.

6. Have there been any report from other
regulatory bodies, such as HM Revenues and
Customs w hich indicate non-compliance?

None.

Page 46

5. What arrangements does Torridge
District Council have in place to identify,
evaluate and account for litigation or
claims?

Related Parties
Issue
Matters in relation to Related Parties
Torridge District Council are required to disclose transactions with entities/individuals that would be classed as related parties. These may
include:
■ entities that directly, or indirectly through one or more intermediaries, control, or are controlled by Torridge District Council;

Page 47

■

associates;

■

joint ventures;

■

an entity that has an interest in the authority that gives it significant influence over the Council;

■

key management personnel, and close members of the family of key management personnel, and

■

post-employment benefit plans (pension fund) for the benefit of employees of the Council, or of any entity that is a related party of the
Council.

A disclosure is required if a transaction (or series of transactions) is material on either side, i.e. if a transaction is im material from the [type of
body]’s perspective but material from a related party viewpoint then the Council must disclose it.
ISA (UK) 550 requires us to review your procedures for identifying related party transactions and obtain an understanding of the controls that you
have established to identify such transactions. We will also carry out testing to ensure the related party transaction disclosures you make in the
financial statements are complete and accurate.

18

© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Torridge District Council 2020/21

Related Parties
Management response

1. Have there been any changes in the related
parties including those disclosed in Torridge
District Council’s 2019/20 financial statements?
If so please summarise:
• the nature of the relationship betw een
these related parties and Torridge District
Council

The related party w ork for the 2020/21 accounts has not been completed.

Page 48

Question

•

w hether Torridge District Council has
entered into or plans to enter into any
transactions w ith these related parties
• the type and purpose of these transactions
2. What controls does Torridge District Council
have in place to identify, account for and disclose
related party transactions and relationships?

Members and Senior Officers are require to declare the organisations in w hich they have an interest,
and w hich potentially the Council could contract w ith.

3. What controls are in place to authorise and
approve significant transactions and
arrangements w ith related parties?

Any significant transactions w ould have to be in accordance w ith the Councils’ Finance and Contract
procedure rules.

4. What controls are in place to authorise
and approve significant transactions outside
of the normal course of business?

The Council has a contract w aiver process w here significant transactions take place outside of the
Financial and Contract procedure rules.

19

© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Torridge District Council 2020/21

Accounting estimates
Issue
Matters in relation to Related Accounting estimates
ISA (UK) 540 (Revised December 2018) requires auditors to understand and assess an entity’s internal controls over accounting estimates,
including:
• The nature and extent of oversight and governance over management’s financial reporting process relevant to accounting estimates;
• How management identifies the need for and applies specialised skills or knowledge related to accounting estimates;

Page 49

• How the entity’s risk management process identifies and addresses risks relating to accounting estimates;
• The entity’s information system as it relates to accounting estimates;
• The entity’s control activities in relation to accounting estimates; and
• How management reviews the outcomes of previous accounting estimates.
As part of this process auditors also need to obtain an understanding of the role of those charged with governance, which is particularly important
where the estimates have high estimation uncertainty, or require significant judgement.
Specifically do Audit and Governance Committee members:
• Understand the characteristics of the methods and models used to make the accounting estimates and the risks related to them;
• Oversee management’s process for making accounting estimates, including the use of models, and the monitoring activities undertaken by
management; and
• Evaluate how management made the accounting estimates?
We would ask the Audit and Governance Committee to satisfy itself that the arrangements for accounting estimates are adequate.
20

© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Torridge District Council 2020/21

Accounting Estimates - General Enquiries of Management
Question

Management response

1. What are the classes of transactions, events and
conditions, that are significant to the financial
statements that give rise to the need for, or changes
in, accounting estimate and related disclosures?

The main of significant estimation w ithin the Council’s statement of accounts pertain to the valuation of
Fixed Assets (Property) and pension liabilities.

2. How does the Council’s risk management
process identify and addresses risks relating to
accounting estimates?

Page 50

The council engages experts to provide estimates for property valuations and pension liabilities.

3. How do management identify the methods,
assumptions or source data, and the need for
changes in them, in relation to key accounting
estimates?

The assumptions regarding key estimates are review ed in light of historical performance, sometimes
they are arrived after discussions w ith other local authorities/consultants e.g. calculation of business
rate appeal provision etc..

4. How do management review the outcomes
of previous accounting estimates?

Various, if for example a year end estimates for Housing Benefit subsidy due to the Council w ill
ultimately be judged against the audit and payment of the Housing Benefit subsidy return.

5. Were any changes made to the estimation
None.
processes in 2020/21 and, if so, w hat w as the reason
for these?

© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Torridge District Council 2020/21

Accounting Estimates - General Enquiries of Management
Question

Management response

6. How do management identify the need for and
apply specialised skills or know ledge related to
accounting estimates?

The need for specialised skills is determined by the size of the accounting estimates and the know ledge
w ithin the Council. With regards to estimates for Pension liabilities this is an area of specialism the
Council doesn’t not have and hence actuaries are engaged. The Council does not have the capacity
w ithin its property team to provide valuations of its properties and hence engages the District Valuer to
undertake these w orks.

7. How does the Council determine w hat
control activities are needed for significant
accounting estimates, including the controls at
any service providers or management
experts?

The accountancy team review s estimates provided by external experts and raising queries (for
example large movements on property valuations).

Page 51

The Section 151 officer review s estimates calculated by members of the accountancy team for
reasonableness.

8. How do management monitor the operation of
control activities related to accounting estimates,
including the key controls at any service providers or
management experts?

As above.

9. What is the nature and extent of oversight and
governance over management’s financial
reporting process relevant to accounting
estimates, including:
estimates
- accounting
Management’s
process for making significant
- The methods and models used
- The resultant accounting estimates included in
the financial statements.

All accounting estimates are accompanied by w orking papers and supporting documentation
detailing the basis upon w hich estimates had been calculated. Estimation methodologies are
periodically review ed to ascertain if they are still reasonable.

Accounting Estimates - General Enquiries of Management
Management response

10. Are management aw are of transactions,
events, conditions (or changes in these) that may
give rise to recognition or disclosure of significant
accounting estimates that require significant
judgement (other
11. Are the management arrangements for
than those in Appendix A)?
the accounting estimates, as detailed in
Appendix A reasonable?

No.

12. How is the Audit and Governance Committee
provided w ith assurance that the arrangements
for accounting estimates are adequate ?

Ultimately, the external audit of statement of accounts reassurance that estimates are adequate.

Page 52

Question

23

© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Torridge District Council 2020/21

Yes.

Appendix A Accounting Estimates

Method / m odel used
to m ake the estimate

Controls used to
identify estim
ates

Whethe
r
Managem
ent
have
used
an
expert

Underlying assum ptions:
- Assessment of degree of uncertainty
- Consideration of
alternative estim ates

Has there
been a
change in
accountin
g m ethod
in year?

Property, plant
& equipment
Valuations

Expert external valuer used
(District Valuer). Valuations
on DRC, EUV, MV basis.

valuations have
been professionally
undertaken to RICS
standards

Yes

Estimates review ed by property
manager, and Capital accountant, for
reasonableness and variances.

No

Estimate
d
remainin
g
useful lives of
Depreciatio
PPE
n and
Amortisation

Expert external valuer used
(District Valuer).

As above

Yes

Estimates review ed by property
manager, and Capital accountant, for
reasonableness and variances.

No

Based on remaining
useful economic life

As above

Impairments

Property manager assesses
any significant impairments

Page 53

Estim ate

24

© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Torridge District Council 2020/21

No

No

Appendix A Accounting Estimates
Method / m odel used
to m ake the estimate

Whethe
r
Managem
ent
have
used
an
expert

Underlying assum ptions:
- Assessment of degree of uncertainty
- Consideration of alternative
estim ates

Has there
been a
change in
accountin
g m ethod
in year?

Measuremen
t of Financial
Instruments

Value carried at amortised
cost, or measured at fair value.

No

Credit risk undertaken for
investments. Historical default risk
for debtors.

No

Provisions for
liabilities

NNDR appeals
Housing bond scheme

No

Historical performance

No

Bad Debt
Provision

Traditionally the collection
rate for Council Tax and
Business rate has
fluctuated betw een narrow
parameters.

No

Historical performance

No

Accruals

deminimus level of £5,000
is normally applied to any
manual accrual
adjustments

No

Page 54

Estim ate

25

© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Torridge District Council 2020/21

Controls used to
identify estim
ates

No

Appendix A Accounting Estimates
Method / m odel used
to m ake the estimate

Non
Adjusting
events –
events after
the balance
sheet date

n/a

Pension
Fund (LGPS)
Actuarial
gains/losses

Experts
provide
labilities
valuations

Page 55

Estim ate

26

used
to
Pension
/
asset

© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Torridge District Council 2020/21

Controls used to
identify estim
ates

Data provided to
Pension Actualists'
is signed off by
Finance Department

Whether
Managem ent
have used an
expert

Underlying assum ptions:
- Assessment of degree of uncertainty
- Consideration of alternative
estim ates

Has
there
change
been a in
accounting
m ethod in
year?

n/a

No

Yes

No

Page 56
© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP
‘Grant Thornton’ refers to the brand under which the Grant Thornton member firms provide assurance, tax and advisory services to their clients
and/or refers to one or more member firms, as the context requires. Grant Thornton UK LLP is a member firm of Grant Thornton International Ltd (GTIL). GTIL
and the member firms are not a worldwide partnership. GTIL and each member firm is a separate legal entity. Services are delivered by the member
firms. GTIL does not
provide services to clients. GTIL and its member firms are not agents of, and do not obligate, one another and are not liable for one another’s acts or omissions.

grantthornton.co.uk

Page 57

Agenda Item 9

Commercial in confidence

Page 58

Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

Page 59
•

•

•

Commercial in confidence

•
•
•
•
•

Page 60
•
•
•

Commercial in confidence

•

Page 61

•
•

•
•

Commercial in confidence

•
•
•
•

•

Page 62

•

•
•
•

•
•

Commercial in confidence

•

•

•
•

Page 63

•

•

•

Commercial in confidence

•
•
•
•
•

Page 64

Commercial in confidence

•
•

Page 65

•
•
•
•

•
•

•

Commercial in confidence

•

Page 66

•
•
•
•

•

•

Commercial in confidence

Page 67
•
•

•
•
•
•

Commercial in confidence

•

Page 68

•
•
•

•
–

–
–
–
•

•

Commercial in confidence

✓

Page 69
✓

Commercial in confidence

Page 70

Commercial in confidence

Page 71
•

•

•

Commercial in confidence

Page 72

Commercial in confidence

Page 73
•

•
•

•
•

Commercial in confidence

17

Page 74

Commercial in confidence

.

•

•

Page 75

•

Ethical Standard (revised
2019)

Commercial in confidence

.

Page 76

Commercial in confidence

Page 77

Commercial in confidence

Page 78

Commercial in confidence

Page 79

Commercial in confidence

Page 80

Page 81

Agenda Item 10
Summary of Internal Audit Reports Issued to Date

REPORT OF

DAP Partnership Manager

To:

Audit & Governance Committee

Subject:

Audit Reports Issued to Date

Date:

31st March 2021

Reference:

PURPOSE OF REPORT: To provide a summary of the audit reports issued to date to
enable members to discuss any matters they wish to raise.

1. INTRODUCTION
The Audit & Governance Committee have requested a regular summary of audit reports issued.
This is to provide an opportunity for discussion and to raise queries related to the reports.
As members receive a full copy of the audit report upon release, they are encouraged to raise
any significant concerns they may have with the Auditor at that time, however this summary
report gives an added opportunity for Members as a group to discuss related matters.
This report includes all final audit reports issued to date that have not been previously reported
to the Committee.
2. REPORT
A summary of those final reports issued to date and not included in previous committee reports
is included at Appendix A.
There are 4 audits to be reported upon:





Housing Renewals
Creditors
NNDR
Main Accounting System

3. IMPLICATIONS
Legal Implications
None.
Financial Implications
None.
Human Resources Implications
None.
Sustainability Implications
None.
Equality/Diversity
None.

Page 82

1

Summary of Internal Audit Reports Issued to Date

Risk Management
The Risk Based Internal Audit Plan is designed to provide robust coverage of the key risks faced by
the Council each year. It is developed in consultation with management and approved by members.
Each internal audit report provides the following key information:
Assurance level – providing an overall opinion on the audit area.
Acton plan – including audit recommendations (where applicable) and management responses.
Reported issues are assigned a priority rating of high, medium, or low, based on the perceived
impact and likelihood as established within the corporate risk matrix.
The report may also include ‘opportunity’ findings, which are suggested courses of action perceived
to add value and included for consideration.
Low priority or housekeeping matters are reported separately to operational management during
the draft audit stage.
Where this is an opportunity to add value by suggesting
Progress with implementing actions is reported to the Chief Executive Officer or Senior
Management Team, and to the Audit & Governance Committee, on a quarterly basis.
Compliance with Policies and Strategies
This report complies with the Audit & Governance Committee terms of reference and the Audit
Procedures Manual.
Ward Member and Leader Member Views
Councillor Philip Hackett, Chair of Audit & Governance, commented “The Internal Audits Reports
contribute to the Council’s robust governance arrangements.”

4. CONCLUSIONS
The following is a summary of the four assurance levels currently used, along with the audits that
have been awarded each level:
Opinion
Substantial Assurance
‘A sound system of Governance’

Audit
Creditors
Main Accounting System

Reasonable Assurance
‘Some scope for improvement’

NNDR

Limited Assurance
‘Improvement is required’

Housing Renewals

No Assurance
‘Immediate action required’

None

Page 83

2

Summary of Internal Audit Reports Issued to Date
5. RECOMMENDATIONS
Committee are asked to:
Note the report issued in this reporting period and raise any queries, suggestions or proposals
relating to the internal audits in this report.
SUPPORTING INFORMATION
Consultations:

Steve Hearse, Chief Executive Officer
Staci Dorey, Head of Legal and Governance and Monitoring
Officer
Councillor Philip Hackett, Audit and Governance Committee Chair

Contact Officer:

David Heyes, Finance Manager & S151 Officer
Robert Hutchins – Head of Devon Audit Partnership
Audit files

Background Papers:

Page 84

3

Summary of Internal Audit Reports Issued to Date
Appendix A
Overview of Reports Issued but not Previously Reported to Committee

Housing Renewals (2019-20)
Overall Assurance Level – Limited Assurance
No of recommendations – 10
No of recommendations agreed - 10
Summary
The audit would normally have focussed on disabled facilities grants, but as administration of these
had been outsourced to a neighbouring authority at that time, we instead focussed on a relatively new
initiative, being the eco flex top up grants.
The most significant findings from this audit focussed on a need for improved monitoring of budgets,
due to a significant overspend, as well as the need to ensure suitable levels of application validation
and checking, to counter the risk of fraud.
Some of the issues may have arisen due to team resourcing pressures, which we understand have
now been addressed to some degree.
Management responded positively to this report and acknowledged a need and commitment to
address the matters raised.

Creditors
Overall Assurance Level – Substantial Assurance
No of recommendations – 3 (including two ‘opportunity’)
No of recommendations agreed – 1 primary and 1 opportunity
Summary
The creditors system continues to operate effectively and day to day systems and controls have not
been significantly impacted by the Covid response, despite some additional workloads being placed
on the team.
Our primary finding revolved around some payments being processed without an official order having
been raised, which makes it more difficult to accurately monitor affected budgets.

Page 85

4

Summary of Internal Audit Reports Issued to Date
NNDR
Overall Assurance Level – Reasonable Assurance
No of recommendations - 8
No of recommendations agreed - 8
Summary
The NNDR team have been significantly impacted by the Covid response during the current year. The
processing of related discounts and reliefs, as well as the processing of large volumes of business
grants, has fallen primarily to this team. Whilst crucial activities such as system parameter updates
and billing runs had occurred as planned, it was no surprise that the audit identified a number of day to
day processes that have lapsed.
Management have responded positively to this report and all actions were agreed, some being
implemented by the time the final report had been issued.
Main Accounting System
Overall Assurance Level – Substantial Assurance
No of recommendations - 0
No of recommendations agreed – N/A
Summary
The Main Accounting System continues to operate effectively and day to day systems and controls
have not been significantly impacted by the Covid response.

Page 86

5

AUDIT & GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE – FORWARD PLAN 2021/22
Cycle
1

Cycle 2

27/7/21

Audit
Committee
Risk
Management

Internal Audit

Cycle 4

19/10/21

Corporate Risk

Audit Report Issued

Page 87

Draft Statement of
Accounts
Annual Governance
Statement

Audit Report
Issued
Progress with
agreed actions

Presentation &
Approval of
Accounts & AGS
Report on
Going Concern
Letter of
Representation
Final Annual
Governance

Update Report

Cycle 6

Cycle 7

18/01/22

29/03/22

Corporate Risk

Corporate Risk

Cycle
8

Audit Finding
Report

Audit Report Issued
Progress with agreed
actions

Audit Report
Issued
Progress with
agreed actions
Draft Audit Plan
2021/22

Preparation for final
account

Update Report
Annual Certification
Letter
Annual Audit
Letter

Update Report
External Audit
Plan

Note: At the end of each meeting, should it be deemed desirable, Members may meet with the External Auditors privately.

Agenda Item 11

External
Audit

Cycle
5

Effectiveness of A&G
Committee

Progress with agreed
actions

Accounts

Cycle
3

.

Agenda Item 14

Document is Restricted

Page 88

